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In the Matter of: 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

JAN 0 9 2014 
PUBLIC SERVICE 

COMMISSION 

Joint Petition of W&W Service Corporation and Paducah-McCracken 
County Joint Sewer Agency to Approve the Transfer of Operation of the Terre 
Verte Subdivision to Paducah-McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency 

1. JURISDICTION 

The Kentucky Public Service Commission (PSC) has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 
KRS 278.010 and KRS 278.020(5). 

2. PETITIONERS 

a. W&W Service Corporation ("W&W") is a not-for-profit Kentucky corporation, with a post 
office address of 1600 Bleich Road, Paducah, Kentucky 42003. W&W provides wastewater treatment as 
authorized by the Kentucky Public Service Commission. A copy of W&W's Articles of Incorporation are 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit "A." 

b. Paducah-McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency ("JSA") is a body politic created by the 
City of Paducah and McCracken County, Kentucky pursuant to KRS Chapter 76 through the passage of 
identical enacting ordinances on July 1, 1999. JSA's address is 621 Northview Street, Paducah, 
Kentucky 42001. A copy of JSA's Enacting Ordinance is of record in Case Number 2013-00333 and is 
incorporated herein by reference. 

3. TRANSFER AGREEMENT 

Subject to the approval of the PSC, and other regulatory agencies, W&W entered into a transfer 
agreement with JSA, dated December 12, 2012, wherein W&W agreed to assign and transfer to JSA its 
wastewater treatment facilities in the Terre Verte subdivision in McCracken County, (hereinafter 
collectively referred to Terre Verte) consisting of all assets, rights, privileges, debts and liabilities of 
every nature and wheresoever situated. Provided, however, that W&W will retain responsibility for 
decommissioning the wastewater treatment plant. A true and exact copy of said agreement is attached 
hereto, and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit "B." A true and exact copy of the resolutions of 
W&W and JSA to consummate the transaction contemplated by such transfer agreement are attached 
hereto, and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit "C." 

The terms and provisions of the transfer agreement are most beneficial to the customers of Terre 
Verte. In particular, by virtue of the transfer agreement, the customers of Terre Verte will realize the 
following benefits: 

a. The transfer agreement provides that JSA will assume full responsibility for operating and 
maintaining Terre Verte's wastewater treatment facilities in the subject subdivisions. Therefore, the 
customers of Terre Verte will not only realize a greater revenue base, but also will be accorded the 
additional technical expertise and equipment which can be provided to the customers of Terre Verte over 
and above the technical expertise and equipment which W&W could provide. 



By: 
dings, ole Sha older a d Director of 

W&W Service Corporation 

4. W&W PLAN OF OPERATIONS 

Upon approval by the PSC, JSA expects to commence operations of Terre Verte's wastewater 
treatment facilities. The transfer of all title and management of Terre Verte's wastewater collection 
systems to JSA shall be completed or substantially completed by the commencement date. 

5. QUALIFICATIONS TO OPERATE TERRE VERTE 

JSA hereby affirms that it is ready, willing and able to provide water services to the customers of 
Terre Verte. JSA affirmatively states that it has the, "financial, technical, and managerial abilities to 
provide reasonable service" as required by KRS 278.020(5). In support thereof, please see the following 
documents, all of which are incorporated herein by reference: 

a. JSA currently provides sewer services to customers within Paducah and McCracken County as 
detailed in Exhibit "D" attached hereto; 

b. Audited Financial Statements of JSA for fiscal year 2012 are attached hereto as Exhibit "E". 

The joint applicants state that the transfer of Terre Verte's wastewater treatment facilities to JSA 
is genuinely in the public interest, is reasonably necessary for the public convenience, necessity, health, 
comfort and well-being of the customers currently served in Terre Verte, and that JSA can and will 
operate said facilities as part of its existing system on a sound financial basis. 

6. REQUEST FOR EXPEDITED CONSIDERATION 

WHEREFORE, the Joint Petitioners pray that the PSC: 

1. Approve the transfer of the assets of Terre Verte to JSA in accordance with the terms and 
conditions set forth herein; 

2. Provide to the Joint Petitioners such other relief as they may appear to be entitled. 

DATED: lino 

  

Respectfully Submitted, 

PURCHASE PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION 

2 



n Hodges, Exe tiv Director 

Melissa D. Yates 

PADUCAH-MCCRACKEN COUNTY JOINT SEWER AGENCY 

And 

DENTON & KEULER, LLP 
P. 0. BOX 929 
PADUCAH KY 42002-0929 
Telephone: (270) 443-8253 
Facsimile: (270) 442-6000 

ATTORNEYS FOR THE JOINT APPLICANTS 
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My commission expires: 

ekx., 'LP 4P 97P3 

VERIFICATION 

The undersigned states that he has read the foregoing and that same is true to the best of 
his knowledge, information and belief. 

Glidings, Sole shareholder a Director 

STATE OF KENTUCKY 

COUNTY OF MCCRACKEN ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 	day of January, 
2014, by Glen Ridings, Sole Shareholder and Director of W&W Service Corporation. 

Notary Public, State at Large 

4 



VERIFICATION 

The undersigned states that he has read t foregoing and that same is true to the best of 
his knowledge, information and belief. 

Joh 	 D'i'rector, 
Pad 	

Exe uti aitector, 
Pad 	McCracl en ounty Joint 
Sewer Agency 

STATE OF KENTUCKY 	) 

COUNTY OF MCCRACKEN) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this  D 	day of January, 
2014, by John Hodges, Executive Director of McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency. 

My commission expires: 

Notary Public, State at Large 

5 



7 S1 go 

whose initial agent for process is  GTRALD WILLIAMS 

34 COLONY DRIVE 

and whose address is 	 PADUCAH, KENTUCKY 42001 

duly signed according to law, have been filed in my office. I further certify that all 
taxes, fees and charges payable upon the filing of said Articles of Incorporation have 
been paid. 

Given under my hand and seal of O ffice as Secretary of 

,Itate, at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 	14TH  

dory of 	MARCH 	 , I9 77  

 

lialg  
OICRITAWY Cf 
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SECRETARY OF STATE 
OFFICE OE 

DREXELL R. DAVIS 
Secretary 

FRANKFORT, 
KENTUCKY 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

DREXELL R. DAVIS, Secretary of State of the Comnsomemdth of Kentucky, do 
hereby certify that Articles of Incorporation of 

W 14 W SERVICE CO. 

PADUCAH. KENTUCKY 

SECRETARY OF STATH 
	 ASOISTANTIIINCJIITAIV OV //TAT( 
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ORIGINAL COPY 
MUD 

sicaL7AtY OF STATE OF NOTOCKY e.tunualo. mime 
C-jr1 30. °C) 

MAR 1 4 1974 
'moo

(ntr-.4*-- 
w 

The corporntion is hereby organized under the 

laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, to be known as 

W & W SERVICE CO. 

11 

The purpose of the corporation shall be to 

purchase, leime, build, lay, construct, alter, maintain 

and operate n sanitary sewage treatment plant, with n 

connecting collection system, to be located in McCracken 

County, Kentucky, providing for hire, sanitary sewage 

facilities, primarily, for real estate in McCracken 

County, Kentucky, to purchomo, lease and secure such 

rent estate, easements mid other grants for the plant 

site nod the coonecting collection system as may be 

necessary to effect the proper operation of such plant; 

to sell, lease or give topping rights to the connecting 

collection system of said treatment plant to landowners 

in said county when feasible, wishing to purchase said 

tapping rights; to lease, for n monthly service charge, 

the treatment focilitics of said Pint to those land-

owners who have acquired said topping rights; to sell, 

transfer and convey the sanitary sewage treatment plant 

and connecting system to any governmental unit or agency 

that will assume the operatioo of mnid system; to trans-

act any and nil other luwrul bUsiness for which corpora-

tions may be organized under the laws of the Commonwealth 

of Krntncky; and to do everything necessary, suitable, or 

Proper for the accomplishment or any of these purposes or 

of any objective ineldentoi to or connected with any of 

http://apps.sos.lcy.gov/ImageWebViewer/(S(ujbfqr55tan5i2mci2u0gb45))/obdbdisplayim... 12/20/2013 
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111 

The duration of the corporation shall be 

perpetual. 

IV 

The registered office of this corporation in 

the Commonwealth or Kentucky shall hu located nt 34 

Colony Drive, Paducah, Kentucky 42001. The registered 

agent or this. corporottoo stint! be Gerold Williams, 

who 	tuldre:;s is 34 Colony Drive, Paducah, Kentucky 42001. 

V 

The nuthorisod stock of this corporation shall 

consist of three thousand (3,000) shores of stock of no 

par value, with each share hnving equal voting rights. 

Vl 

The corporation miry begin business with a paid-

in copitiO of not less than We1ve iihrldred (1,200.00) 

Dollars. 

V11 

The mimes and addresses of incorporators of this 

corporation, nod the number or shares subscribed to by 

each lire: 

Kenneth C. Wise 	34 ColonrDrive, Paducah, Ky. 1,000 shares 

Gernld Williams 	14 Colony Drive, Pmlucalt, Ky. 1,000 shares 

Gory WHiilois 	34 Colony Drive, Paducat, Ky. 1,000 shores 

VIAT 

The management of this corporation shall be vested 

in o hoard of Directors. Three Directors shall be elected 

nt the first meeting of the paid-in subscribers, which 

meeting sholl be called by the incorporators, and said 

1)i rectors Shell 'held Orrice until their successors have 

been duly elected and qualified. Thu membership of the 

Board of Directors may be increased nt any meeting of the 

stockholders. The nomes and addresses of the persons who ore 

to serve as directors until the first meeting of the paid-in 

1,ra v... 	 the, tt 	 .1.1.1.1rav west. 	 h 4 rt Ant ralr. 
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IX 

The authority to mac; by-lows shall be vested 

in the Hoard of Directors and may be exercised by affir-

motive vote of o mnjority of the duly elected Directors, 

subject only to the power of the stockholders to change 

or reportl such by-lawm by nn nf.firmetive vote of the 

midority of the stockholders. 

The officers shall consist of n President, 

Vice-President and Secretnry-TrensUrer, and such other 

officers As may be provided by the by-laws, from time 

to time, ;ma n11 officers shall serve for such terms as 

the by-lows may provide. The officers of the corpora-

tion shot) exercise such powers AA mny be vested in them 

from time to time by the by-inws. The officers of the 

corporation shill] be elected by the Hoard or Directors 

until tuol unless n different provision is. made for their 

election by the offirmotive vote of nmujority of the 

stockholders. 

IN TESTIMONY W10411P, witness the signatures of 

Kenneth C. Wise, Gerald Willinms and Gary Willivms on 

this the:4:1F4day of Februnry, 1977. 

• 5%4,  
• UAW  

STATE OF KENTUCKY ) 
) ss 

C(ONTY OF MCCRACKEN ) 

I 	 ••■ 	 . 7.; f. 5\ 	, a Notary Public 

within nod for the state rod county aforesaid, do hereby 

certify that the foregoing Art 	es of Incorporntion were 
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1.111N day produced before me by Kenneth C. Wise, Gerald 

Wii tuns and Gary Wiilinms, and the sane were acknow-

ledged by them to be their net run, deed. 

WITNESS my hand end seal of office on this 

the ..t.Ydday of February, 1!)77. 

	

My commission expires:'  i tr. • t 	cr'3  

Tho 	 I'fL 

	

or, 	I. e; 	ate-a 4 Large 

http://apps.sos.lcy.gov/ImageWebViewer/(S(ujbfqr55tan5i2mci2u0gb45))/obdbdisplayim... 12/20/2013 

W & W Service Corporation -- Articles of Incorporation 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 10 



Page 2 of 2 

-4- 

Multi-page document. Select page: 1 2 a 4 5 6 

http://apps.sos.ky.gov/ImageWebViewer/(S(ujbfqr55tan5i2mci2u0gb45))/obdbdisplayim... 12/20/2013 

W & W Service Corporation -- Articles of Incorporation 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 10 



Page 1 of 1 

Multi-page document. Select page: 1 2 3 4 5  6 

?FlArtr..Eti A. SALA nIZTO 
NIN ki,trro WSW/ 111T1.111M 

VAIARAU:KONTUOKY44407 
AI.MMKann, 
Ortmmto8 A. 1381.1.1)1i. 
MM. rusts., 

AAal 005515(83 
.44843741 
448437441 

Raw: (BOB).48.2800 

March 7, 1977 

Secretary of State 
Corporation Department 
Frankfort, Kentucky 

Dear Secretory of Stale: 

Ettelesed please find the annual report of W & W 
Development, Inc. for the years 1971 and 1974. 
Also, enclosed are the Article of Incorporation 
fur W W Service Company, a new corporation 
whose registerntion I have requested. Please 
send the hill for filing roes to this address. 

Slneerdly, 
1 

,• 
I,. • 

4111 lelynn 

ill' /sc 

411110,,,,  
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AGREEMENT 

1 . 44 - 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this Li- —day of  P ece.Aocza0  13, by and 

between PADUCAH MCCRACKEN COUNTY JOINT SEWER AGENCY, hereinafter referred to as 
"JSA" and W&W SERVICE COMPANY, hereinafter referred to as "W&W"; 

WITNESETH: 

WHEREAS, W&W desires to transfer operation and responsibility for operation of the 
Wastewater Collection Facilities of Terra Verte subdivision in McCracken County (hereinafter the 
"Wastewater Collection Facilities") and JSA has agreed to acquire the operation of said Wastewater 
Collection Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, JSA and W&W now desire to formalize their agreement in writing; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the legal adequacy and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged by all parties, the parties do covenant and agree as follows: 

1. 	TRANSFER AND ACCEPTANCE. 

1.L _Description of Agreement _aubject_to_the terms and conditions of this Agreement, W&W, 	 
hereby agrees to transfer unto JSA and JSA hereby agrees to accept from W&W, the 
responsibility for wastewater collection and the attending facilities, excluding the treatment 
plant and lagoons, associated with wastewater treatment of the Terra Verte subdivision. 
Included in this transfer and acceptance are all equipment and personal property, such as 
the piping, which constitute the collection system, all easement rights, and all contract 
rights of W&W in and to the Terra Verte subdivision in McCracken County. Provided, 
however, that W&W shall retain ownership of and shall ultimately be responsible for 
decommissioning the associated wastewater treatment plant and lagoons. In such regard, 
JSA has agreed to assist W&W by removing the liquids from the lagoon which is currently 
in use for Terre Vert°. However, in no way does this obligate JSA to assist with removal of 
sludge from said lagoon. 

1.2 	Title to be Delivered. W&W agrees to transfer easements the collection system utilized in 
the operation of the Wastewater Collection Facilities, which property shall not be subject to 
any lien or adverse interest of another except as may be acceptable to JSA. Provided, 
however, this transfer shall not include any other real or personal property owned by W&W 
which is utilized for purposes beyond wastewater collection within Terra Verte. JSA may, 
at its cost, have a title examination performed on the property transferred herein. 

1.3 	Documents of Transfer. W&W shall execute all documents of transfer, including 
appropriate and recordable deeds of conveyance, transfer, and bills of sale. All documents 
of transfer shall be duly authorized by appropriate resolution of W&W. 

Transfer Agreement 
Exhibit "B" 

Page 1 of 7 



2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF W&W. 

2.1 	Merchantable Title. W&W hereby represents and warrants to JSA that it has full and 
complete merchantable title to the property to be transferred hereunder. JSA may waive 
any defect at its option. 

2,2 	Condition of Facilities. W&W hereby represents that to the best of its knowledge its 
facilities are in compliance with all federal, state, and local law. 

2,3 	Adverse Proceeding. W&W hereby represents to JSA that to the best of its knowledge it is 
not presently a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding, nor has knowledge of any 
threatened or imminent judicial or administrative proceeding. 

2.4 	Operations. W&W hereby represents to JSA that to the best of its knowledge the operation 
of the Wastewater Collection Facilities and associated treatment facilities has been and 
continues to be in compliance with all federal, state, and local regulatory law. 

3. OBLIGATIONS OF W&W PRIOR TO CLOSING. 

3.1 	Obligations to Continue Management of Facilities. From and after the date of the 
execution_ofthis Agreement to datesifelosing,W&W shall continue the management, 
operation, and maintenance of the Wastewater Collection and Treatment Facilities in a 
sound and reasonable manner and in accordance with standard wastewater collection and 
treatment practices. Additionally, W&W shall continue to collect its charges from its 
customers in the usual and customary manner, and shall maintain good operating and 
accounting records, 

3.2 	Prohibition Against Further Liability and Expenditures. From and after the date of the 
execution of this Agreement to date of closing, W&W shall not incur any additional 
liability or debt nor make any expenditure of funds unless such liability, debt, or 
expenditure is reasonably necessary to the continued operations of W&W, or W&W's 
compliance with its obligations as herein assumed. Additionally, W&W shall not enter into 
any additional contractual relationship with any of its customers which is not in the 
ordinary course of business unless the prior written consent of ISA is obtained. 

3.3 	Information to be Disclosed to ISA. JSA shall not assume any debt owed by W&W and 
W&W warrants that no debts are currently owed on the assets to be transferred. W&W 
shall provide to JSA full and complete access to all of its files related to the Wastewater 
Collection Facilities, records, documents, maps and writings, and JSA may request that 
W&W personnel be available to JSA to be interviewed about operational matters, or 
otherwise provide information regarding the operation of the W&W. 

-2- 
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3.4 	Access to Real and Personal Property. W&W shall provide to JSA full and complete 
access to the real and personal properties pertaining to the Wastewater Collection 
Facilities. JSA shall have the right to fully inspect same, and perform any test or study as 
relates to same. W&W shall identify to JSA any known defects or needs of imminent 
repair or replacement regarding any of the aforesaid property. Additionally, W&W shall 
identify and provide to JSA any manufacturer's warranties, documents of purchase, service 
agreements or other written representations as relate to any of W&W's property. 

4. 	OBLIGATIONS OF JSA PRIOR TO CLOSING. 

4.1 	Investigation. From and after the date of execution of this Agreement, ISA shall 
immediately commence its due diligence and inspection of W&W, including the physical 
assets and all documents and records relating to liabilities and contracts to be assumed by 
JSA as provided herein, and of the document and records relating to the financial worth and 
condition of W&W. JSA may employ, at its expense, any engineer, accountant, attorney, 
or any other expert to perform any part of the investigation and inspection to be performed 
by ISA. 

4.2 	Approvals. From and after the date of the execution of this Agreement the parties shall 
initiate a proceeding with the Kentucky Public Service Commission for its approval of the 
transfer contemplated herein, which cost shall be paid by JSA. Additionally, ISA shall 
initiate, at its cost, the appropriate proceedings before any state or federal agencies their 
consent and approval ofthisAgreement, and thetransf.er and acceptance as herein 
provided. 

4.3 	Documents of Transfer. ISA shall bear the cost of the preparation of all documents of 
transfer, including any deeds of conveyance and bills of sale which shall be available for 
inspection by W&W prior to the time of closing. 

S. 	CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO TRANSFER AND ACCEPTANCE. 

5.1 	Conditions Precedent. Notwithstanding the foregoing transfer and acceptance, this transfer 
and acceptance shall be subject to the following conditions precedent 

5.1.1 Title to the equipment and property transferred herein shall be marketable fee simple title 
free and clear of all liens or adverse interests except those acceptable to JSA; 

5.1.2 The transfer and assignment shall be fully and finally approved by applicable state and 
federal agencies, specifically including the Kentucky Public Service Commission; 

5.1.3 The liabilities to be assumed by JSA as provided for herein are acceptable to JSA at its 
discretion; 

5.1.4 The contractual agreements to be assumed by JSA as provided for herein are acceptable to 
JSA at its discretion; 

-3- 
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5,1.5 The equipment and property to be transferred herein shall be in an acceptable condition 
and state of repair; 

5.1.6 All other representations and warranties of W&W to ISA have been fully satisfied and 
complied with; and 

5.2 	Satisfaction of Conditions Precedent. On the date of closing, all of the above-referenced 
conditions precedent shall be fully satisfied and complied with. In the event any one of the 
aforesaid conditions precedent is not fully satisfied and complied with, JSA, at its option, 
may terminate this Agreement, and upon such termination, the Agreement shall be of no 
further legal force and effect. Upon such termination, W&W shall not be liable to ISA in 
any manner whatsoever. 

6. CLOSING. 

6.1 	Date and Place of Closing. Upon BA's determination that all conditions precedent have 
been fully satisfied and complied with, JSA shall immediately give written notice of such 
fact to W&W. Closing shall take place as soon as practicable following the date of said 
notice, but in no event shall it be more than 90 days from notice. 

6.2 	Documents of Transfer. At the time of closing, W&W shall tender to JSA properly 
executed documents of transfer including appropriate resolutions of W&W authorizing the 

----transfer-and-appropriate deeds of conveyance and.bills_ofsale. Additionaily, at the time of 	 
transfer, W&W shall tender to JSA all of its records and documents related to the 
Wastewater Collection Facilities including, but not limited to customer accounts and files, 
engineering plans, easements, contracts with customers, etc. It is the intent of the parties 
herein that on date of closing, any and all of the property, rights and privileges pertaining to 
the Wastewater Collection Facilities shall be finally assigned and transferred to ISA. 
Provided, however, that it is understood that any and all receivables due and owing to 
W&W shall remain the sole and exclusive property of W&W and shall not be transferred. 

6.3 	Notice of Closing to W&W Customers. Upon fmal transfer of W&W's assets and property, 
W&W agrees to provide notification of the same to all of the customers of W&W who will 
be transferred to JSA. 

7. OBLIGATIONS OF W&W SUBSEQUENT TO CLOSING. 

7.1 	Assistance in Transition. Immediately subsequent to closing, W&W shall utilize its best 
efforts to assist ISA in transferring the customer accounts and files to JSA and to otherwise 
cooperate and assist JSA to finalize the transfer of property and the assumption of W&W's 
operations by JSA. W&W shall not do any act or omit to perform any act which is adverse 
or inimical to this Agreement. 

8. POST-CLOSING OBLIGATIONS OF ,TSA. 

-4- 
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8.1 	Operations of W&W's Wastewater Collection Facilities. From and after the date of 
closing, JSA shall assume full control of the operations of the Wastewater Collection 
Facilities and shall assume full responsibility for providing quality and adequate 
wastewater collection and treatment services. Additionally, ISA shall have full 
responsibility to repair, replace and otherwise maintain the Wastewater Collection 
Facilities. ISA shall operate and maintain the Wastewater Collection Facilities in 
accordance with its general practices and standards which ISA utilizes in relation to its 
other customers, and, additionally, in compliance with all federal, state and local laws. 

	

8.2 	Rates Charged to Current W&W Customers Upon Transfer. Upon transfer to ISA, all 
W&W customers shall be charged according to class in accordance with JSA's current rate 
schedule. Wastewater treatment rate increases to W&W's customers shall be based on the 
same percentage given to all customers of the same class uniformly by ISA. 

	

8.3 	Expansion of W&W Wastewater Collection Facilities. ISA shall use its good faith and 
good business, engineering, and operational practices to establish expansions and 
improvements of the Wastewater Collection Facilities which are necessitated by reason of 
the growth and development of the present area. Any necessary wastewater system 
expansion and improvements shall be addressed and implemented by ISA in accordance 
with the same general prudent utility practices and standards. 

ISA shall make every good faith effort to perform wastewater collection facilities 
extensions and improvements so as to aid the growth and prosperity of the former W&W 

..L.__area....Theforegoing.notwithstanding_alLwastewater collection,extensions and 	_  
improvements shall remain in the discretion of ISA and shall at all times be subject to 
prudent business practices and standards for wastewater treatment utilities. 

	

8.4 	W&W's Contracts. JSA agrees to assume and perform all contractual obligations, if any, of 
W&W in relation to the Wastewater Collection Facilities. 

	

8.5 	Attorney Fees. ISA agrees to pay and satisfy reasonable and necessary attorney's fees 
incurred in seeking Public Service Commission approval of this agreement. 

9. MISCELLANEOUS. 

	

9.1 	Reference to JSA's General Practices and Standards. The references in this Agreement to 
JSA's "general practices and standards" shall be defined to include not only the general 
practices and standards presently utilized by JSA, but additionally, any other practices and 
standards which may be utilized by JSA in the future, so long as said general practices and 
standards treat W&W customers in all respects the same as ISA's other customers. 
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall impair or limit JSA from amending or 
modifying its general practices and standards, or implementing new practices and 
standards. The intent of the parties hereto is merely that W&W customers shall be treated 
as ISA customers, as they are presently treated by ISA and as they may be treated by JSA 
in the future. 
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9.2 	Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement by and between the 
parties hereto, and all prior promises, representations, covenants and understandings are 
fully merged herein. There are no other promises, terms, conditions, or obligations other 
than those specifically contained herein. 

	

9.3 	Captions. The captions appearing in this Agreement have been asserted for the purpose of 
convenience and ready reference. They do not purport to, and shall not be deemed to, 
define, limit, or extend the scope or intent of the clauses to which they pertain. 

	

9.4 	Applicable Law. It is mutually understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky as to both interpretation and 
performance. 

	

9.5 	Binding Effect. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, 
and each of their respective successors and assigns. 

	

9.6 	Assignment. This Agreement, any interest herein, or any claim arising hereunder, shall not 
be transferred by either party without the prior written consent of the other party. 

	

9.7 	Notices. Notice to JSA and W&W shall be given at the following addresses: 

W&W: 1600 Bleich Road 
Paducah, Kentucky 42003 

JSA: 621 Northview Street 
Paducah, Kentucky 42001 

	

9.8 	Severability. The parties agree that if a court of competent jurisdiction holds any one or 
more of the paragraphs or subparagraphs of this Agreement to be invalid or ineffective for 
any reason, any such paragraph or subparagraph will be deemed separate from the 
remainder of this Agreement and will not affect the validity and enforceability of the 
remaining provisions. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands on the date first above written. 

PAD H MCCRA. KEN COUNTY JOINT SEWER AGENCY 

13y: 	  

Title:  e)ce-cov..-itvg p.) 	rc_  

W&W Service Company 
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My commission expires: 

N*.TARY PUBLIC, STA 

#54/7 /e9 
YPUBLIC, STA E LARGE 

B 

Title:  D toit) (,4, ~ ()PeeZif-role. ("IV 	SeeZvi ce  

, on behalf of Paducah McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency, on bel%u405  
tb before me this  I2:'4   day of Deee.A;er— , 2013, by  Cm knyi  

STATE OF KENTUCKY 

COUNTY OF McCRACICEN ) 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this  /02   day Of —)4V6-44b0a. 	z 2013, by 
lokri god3e-, 	gwatilivii rodor  (title) of WeArService Company, on behalf of said entity. 

My commission expires: /9 	,  ills% id 

Co 
STATE OF KENTUCKY 

COUNTY OF McCRACKEN 

Subscribed and SWOrn 
(title)  bi,ntio,c.-Opera,4ote,  
of said entity. 
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RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF 

PADUCAH MCCRACKEN COUNTY JOINT SEWER AGENCY 

May 23, 2013 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Paducah McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency shall 
move forward and consider the potential merger or acquisition of the Terre Verte waste water 
collection system from W&W Service Corporation. In furtherance of said merger or acquisition, 
the Board of Directors of JSA authorize, empower and direct John Hodges, as Executive Director 
of JSA, to take any steps necessary to begin said possible merger or acquisition, including the 
negotiation of a definitive agreement with W&W Service Corporation regarding the same, said 
agreement to be presented to the Board for final approval. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, that the foregoing Resolution was duly authorized by the 
Board of Directors of the JSA on  MA'' SP-1-4 	, and that the foregoing resolution is 
a true and accurate statement of the resolution so adopted. 

By 
Clioirman 

Dated: 	Z 3 M t 	, 2013 

Resolution of JSA and Resolution W & W 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 1 of 3 



168231 

JOINT RESOLUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS AND DIRECTORS 
OF W&W SERVICES CO. 

The undersigned, being the sole shareholder and Director of W&W Services Co., 
(hereinafter the "Corporation"), having waived notice of meeting and all other formalities as may 
be required by the Articles, bylaws, or by law, hereby adopts the following resolutions: 

WHEREAS, Glen Ridings is the sole shareholder of the Corporation and the sole member 
of the Corporation's Board of Directors; 

WHEREAS, the Corporation currently owns and operates a wastewater collection system 
for Terre Verte subdivision in McCracken County; 

WHEREAS, operation of the wastewater collection facilities is unprofitable and the 
liability for the operation of said wastewater collection facility, including regulatory compliance, 
is a more of a burden on the Corporation than a benefit; 

WHEREAS, Paducah-McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency (hereinafter "JSA") 
operates a wastewater collection system near the Terre Verte subdivision and has agreed to take 
over operation of the Terre Verte wastewater collection facilities; 

WHEREAS, for the foregoing reasons, the sole shareholder and director believe it is in 
the best interests of the Corporation to transfer the Terre Verte wastewater collection system to 
JSA; 

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed upon the terms and conditions for said transfer as 
evidenced by an Agreement negotiated between the parties which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit "A". 

NOW, THEREFORE, in order to approve and ratify the aforementioned transfer of Terre 
Verte's wastewater collection system and take such other action necessary relating to the transfer, 
the shareholders and directors unanimously adopt the following resolutions: 

RESOLVED, that the Corporation hereby accepts the offer of JSA to accept the 
wasterwater collection facilities of Terre Verte subdivision in McCracken County 
in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 

RESOLVED, that the officers of the Corporation are authorized to execute 
sale/purchase contracts, assignments and such other documents as are necessary to 
effectuate the foregoing resolutions and to make any and all necessary application 
to the Public Service Commission for approval of the transfer contemplated 
herein. 

Resolution of JSA and Resolution W & W 
Exhibit "C" 
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• 

Gleam' 'dings, 	ng the Sole D' 
Shareholder of W&W Service o. 

Effective the?/ day of December, 2013. 
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ABOUT US 	REPORT A PROBLEM 	CUSTOMER SERVICE 

ABOUT US 

The Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency (JSA) was formed on 
July 1, 1999, to take over the operation and maintenance of Paducah 
and McCracken County's combined sanitary and storm sewer system 
and sanitary-only sewer system. 
The JSA Is responsible for a large wastewater collection and treatment 
network, Including: 

• 333 miles of gravity sanitary sewer, 
• 41 miles of combined storm and sanitary sewer, 
• 44 miles of sanitary,  sewer force main and 
• 6,400 manholes 
• 30,000 sanitary laterals 
• Paducah Wastewater Treatment Plant— 9 million gallon per day capacity 
• Reidland Wastewater Treatment Plant — I million gallon per day capacity 
• Woodlawn Wastewater Treatment facility — 0.900 million gallon per day 

opacity 

The JSA Is a non-profit regional utility service. Our revenue comes 
from wastewater treatment fees, plus charges for extending 
wastewater lines and connecting new customers. 
All of the agency's revenue Is used for operation, maintenance and 
extension and Improvement of services. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The JSA Is governed by a seven-member board. Three members are 
appointed by the Paducah City Commission, three members are 
appointed by the McCracken County Fiscal Court, with the final 
member selected jointly by both commissions. Members serve four-
year overlapping terms and can be reappointed. The full Board meets 
once monthly on the fourth Thursday at 5 PM. 

Contact Us 

John Hodges, Executive Director 
jhodges@jointsewer.com  

Josh Webb, Engineering and Operations Director 
jwebb@jointsewer.com  

Amy Neihoff, Administration & Accounting Manager 
anelhoff@jointsewer.com  

PERMITTING 	FAQ 

DOCUMENTS 
& LINKS 

Combined Sewer 
Overflow History [pdf] 

Consent Judgment 
information 

December 2008 Mailer 
[pdf] 

June 2010 Mailer [pdfj 

March 2012 Mailer 
[pdf] 

FY 2012 Statement of 
Public Funds [pdfl 

FY 2012 Audit Report 
[pdfl 

Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
PADUCAH, KENTUCKY 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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outi KEMPER 
01,41171.112:CPA GROUP LLP 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency 
Paducah, Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Paducah McCracken Joint 
Sewer Agency, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks ofmaterial 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the business-type activities of the Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

333 Broadway, Suite 1001 Paducah, KY 42001 
kempercpa.com  

Phone: (270)443-4400 Fax: (270)443-0963 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis pages 3 through 8 and budgetary comparison information on page 22 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial 
statements. 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 20, 2013, on our 
consideration of the Paducah McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope ofour testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering Paducah McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Ire' t, C /6101 	y 6L/° 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
Paducah, Kentucky 
September 20, 2013 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN 

JSA 
JOINT SEWER AGENCY 

As management of the Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency (JSA), we offer readers of the 
JSA's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

Financial Highlights 
• Net position increased $2.5 million (4.5%) as a result of FY 2013 operations 
• Capital assets increased $5.4 million (9.4%) over the prior fiscal year 
• Operating revenues came in $75 thousand ahead of budget 
• Operating expenses finished $353 thousand less than budget including $168,000 less than 

budgeted depreciation 
• Debt service coverage ratios remain well above the level of compliance 

Required Financial Statements 
Statement of Net Position — The purpose of the Statement of Net Position is to report all of the 
assets held and liabilities owed by the JSA. The statement shows the JSA's level of investment 
in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors (liabilities). The difference between the 
assets and liabilities is labeled net position and is similar to owners' equity presented by a 
commercial enterprise. The purpose of the JSA is not to accumulate net assets, but rather to 
reinvest in the infrastructure and to build sufficient reserves in the event of an emergency. In 
general, increases in net position indicate that the financial position of the JSA is improving over 
time. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — The purpose of this statement is 
to identify the revenues and expenses generated and incurred by the JSA. The focus of this 
statement is to help the user identify the operating results of the JSA during the fiscal year. The 
difference between revenues and expenses is called the change in net position and is similar to 
net income reported by a commercial entity. 

Statement of Cash Flows — The purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows is to analyze the cash 
receipts and disbursements made by the JSA during the fiscal year The statement reports cash 
inflows and outflows resulting from three main business activities: operating, financing and 
investing. The statement addresses the sources and uses of cash, and the change in cash balances 
from the previous reporting period. 
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Financial In  

EXHIBIT 1: Condensed Statements of Net Position (in thousands) 
FYE FYE Dollar Percent 

6/30/13 6/30/12 Change Change 
Assets 
Current assets $ 13,071 $ 12,461 $ 	610 4.9% 
Capital assets 62,655 57,276 5,379 9.4% 
Restricted funds 1,731 3,481 (1,750) -50.3% 
Deferred charges & other 154 140 14 10.0% 

Total assets 77,611 73,358 4,253 5.8% 

Liabilities & net position 
Current liabilities 1,948 2,332 (384) -16.5% 
Noncurrent liabilities 17,818 15,669 2.149 13.7% 

Total liabilities 19,766 18,001 1,765 9.8% 

Invested in capital assets, net 44,126 40,912 3,214 7.9% 
Restricted 1,731 3,481 (1,750) -50.3% 
Unrestricted 11,988 10,964 1,024 9.3% 

Total net position $ 55,357  &JAM 4.5% 

Net Position 
The JSA's total net position increased by $2.5 million in FY 2013 to $57.8 million, The change 
in net assets reflects the JSA's ongoing initiative to enhance and rebuild the aging sewer 
infrastructure as well as extend sewers to previously unsewered and undeveloped areas of the 
city and county. The JSA is committed to capital investments in infrastructure assets to protect 
the integrity of and enhance the existing sewer system. 

Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt Activity 
At the close of FY 2013, the JSA had nearly $62.7 million in undepreciated cost of total capital 
assets. Capital assets increased $5.4 million during FY 2013 due to the purchase of capital 
assets, the completion of capital projects and the contribution of assets to the JSA by private 
developers. During FY 2011, the JSA began constructing a two-phase, multi-year project, 
named the Massac Creek Interceptor, Force Main and Pump Station Project. Phase I of this 
project was placed in service during December, 2012 at a total cost of $9.1 million. To date, 
$13.2 million has been expended on this project, including federal and state awards. 

Total liabilities increased during FY 2013 by almost $1.8 million or 9.8% over FY 2012. JSA 
secured a $10 million loan from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) during FY 2011 to 
aid in financing the Massac Creek Project. This is a construction-type loan where the liability is 
recorded as money is received from KIA and interest-only is currently due on that money. 
Principal payments have not yet begun on that liability. During FY 2013, JSA converted a $4.3 
million loan from Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation (RW) to bonds purchased by 
United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development (RD) for the Massac Creek Project. 
Interest payments began January 2013 with principal payments commencing January 2014. 
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EXHIBIT 2: Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
(in thousands) 

FYE FYE Dollar Percent 
6/30/13 6/30/12 Change Change 

Revenues 
Operating revenues $ 	6,971 $ 	6,807 $ 	164 2.4% 
Non-operating revenues 405 293 112 38.2% 

Total revenues 7,376 7,100 276 3.9% 

Expenses 
Depreciation 2,299 2,100 199 9.5% 
Operating expenses 4,189 4,114 75 1.8% 
Non-operating expenses 192 176 16 9.1% 

Total expenses 6.680 6.390 290 4.5% 

Contributions 1.793 1,037 756 72.9% 

Change in net position 2,489 1,748 741 42.4% 

Beginning net position 55.356 53,608 1.748 3.3% 

Ending net position $ 57,845 $ 55,356 $ 	2,489 4.5% 

Budget 
The JSA conducts its activities in accordance with a budget for operating revenues, operating 
expenses, and capital purchases. The JSA is required to adopt a budget annually. Through 
monitoring and review by the JSA Board, the Agency continuously meets its responsibility for 
sound financial management. 

Operating revenues finished $75 thousand ahead of budget for FY 2013. Sewer charges 
comprise the bulk of operating revenues and are billed based on customer water consumption. 
These charges came in $68 thousand over budget, while the remainder of operating revenues 
came in $7 thousand over budget. Operating expenses came in under budget for the fiscal year 
finishing $353 thousand below estimate. Net  non-operating revenue for FY 2013 was more than 
the budgeted amount mainly due to construction period interest being capitalized rather than 
expensed during the fiscal year. JSA finished the fiscal year with a $695 thousand increase in 
net position before capital contributions. 

Results of Operations 
Overall revenues totaled $7.4 million for FY 2013, an increase of $276 thousand or 3.9% from 
FY 2012. Total expenses increased $290 thousand over FY 2012 to nearly $6.7 million. The 
largest contributing factor to the increase in expenses was depreciation resulting from the 
capitalization of large projects during the fiscal year and the capitalization of interest to those 
projects. 
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EXHIBIT 3: Detail of Operating Expenses 
Operating Expenses FYE FYE Dollar Percent 
(in thousands) 6/30/13 6/30/12 Change Change 

Salaries and benefits $ 	2,179 $ 	2,107 $ 	72 3.4% 
Chemicals, testing & solids disposal 309 293 16 5.5% 
Utilities 653 587 66 11.2% 
Material, supplies and repairs 435 537 (102) -19.0% 
Fleet expense 127 139 (12) -8.6% 
Professional fees 153 115 38 33.0% 
Billing, collection and bad debts 143 139 4 2.9% 
All other 190 197 (7) -3.6% 
Total S__4,189. S 	4.114 5 	75  1.8% 

Salaries and Benefits 
Salaries and benefits comprise the bulk of operating expenses. Benefits total 51% of actual 
wages, with health insurance comprising 40% of the benefits cost. While pension funding has 
risen over the past several years, it remained steady during FY 2013 costing the Agency $271 
thousand, or 37% of total benefits. Employees received annual wage increases during FY 2013 
and 2012. 

Other Operating Expenses 
Chemicals, testing and solids disposal showed a $16 thousand increase from the prior year. 
Chemical usage amounts and costs vary from year to year based on a variety of factors, including 
economic conditions and pricing, as well as certain operational parameters which vary due to 
odor control requirements, treatment plant flows, and the maintenance of the bacterial inventory 
at the wastewater treatment plants. Solids disposal costs vary primarily based on the treated flow 
amounts, the efficiency of the wastewater treatment plant digesters and the ability for the City of 
Paducah's composting facility to efficiently handle the Paducah wastewater treatment plant's 
fully digested sludge inventory. In times of low composting supply material (i.e. branches, 
leaves, sticks, etc.) or composting facility equipment breakdown, the JSA is forced to landfill 
sludge at higher costs. 

The largest component of utilities expense is electricity costs. The budget for electricity was 
$496 thousand with actual costs totaling $523 thousand. Electricity costs vary from year to year 
based on flows received and pumped. Other factors can have a large impact on electricity usage, 
such as the methane burning engine in use at the Paducah Wastewater Treatment Plant. When 
this large engine is offline, more electricity is consumed. Most utility rates have been impacted 
by rate increases over the last few years, and will most likely continue to do so, making the 
budgeting process difficult. 

Materials, supplies and repairs are ordinary and necessary costs incurred to keep the sewer utility 
process in good working order. The FY 2013 budget for materials, supplies and repairs was 
$530 thousand resulting in a positive variance of $95 thousand. This is due to successful 
preventive maintenance programs as well as a reduction of higher-cost dig and repairs. 
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The largest component of the material, supplies and repairs category is repairs, which include 
collection system point repairs, pump rebuilds, and plant equipment repairs. Contract labor is 
sometimes used for these repairs and is charged to this category, while internal labor for repair 
work is expensed to salaries and wages. Expenses are categorized using the three main 
components of a sewer system: pipes, pumps and motors. Repairs were made as follows: 

EXHIBIT 4: Repairs by Department (in thousands) 

Department 
FYE 
2013 

FYE 
2012 

Dollar 
Change 

Percent 
Change 

Collection System (pipes) $ 	159 $ 	224 $ 	(65) -29.0% 
Lift Stations (pipes & pumps) 54 80 (26) -32.5% 
Treatment Plants (pipes, pumps & motors) 43 39 4 10.3% 
Total $ 	256 $ 	343  $ 	(87) -25.4% 

Fleet expense declined $12 thousand, or 8.6%, over the prior fiscal year. The JSA maintains a 
vehicle replacement program to cull the aging fleet and attempt to minimize extensive repair 
costs. Fleet expense finished $23 thousand less than budget for the current fiscal year. 

FY 2013 professional fees were $38 thousand higher than in FY 2012. This is due to litigation 
with a developer that arose during the fiscal year. The budget for professional fees was $89 
thousand for FY 2013. 

Paducah Water provides billing and collection services. Bad debt write offs finished better than 
expected at 0.60% of sewer charges. 

All other expenses totaled $190 thousand for FY 2013 and included costs for insurance, office, 
safety, training and miscellaneous expenses. The budget for all other expenses was $211 
thousand. While most expenses included in this category finished near budget, safety came in 
almost $6 thousand less than budget, and miscellaneous expense finished $17 thousand under 
budget. A portion of the safety expense is paid to a third party provider and fluctuates based on 
the working environment and safety conditions encountered. Miscellaneous expense can vary 
widely due to insurance claims, grant fees, legal advertising and certain travel expenses. 

Debt Service Coverage 
Debt service coverage ratio is an indicator of the JSA's ability to meet its debt obligations. The 
JSA Board strives to maintain a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.3 times the required 
debt service payments. For purposes of this calculation, gross revenues include investment 
income, grant revenues and connection fees, but exclude the deduction for depreciation expense. 
The ISA is exceeding the minimum level of net revenue equal to 1.3 times of the required debt 
service payments. The JSA's debt service coverage ratio was 3.82 in 2013 and 2.95 in 2012. 

Relevant Current Economic Factors and Other Significant Matters 
Regional economic trends that affect the financial condition of the JSA have remained sluggish 
throughout this fiscal year. New home construction was slow which is representative of the 
current U.S. market. 
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Investment returns have continued to show significant declines. These returns will fluctuate with 
adjustments in interest rates, due to the nature of our investments. 

The Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency entered into a Consent Judgment with the 
Kentucky Environmental and Public Protection Cabinet in September 2007 to bring combined 
and sanitary sewer overflows into compliance with Federal and State guidelines. The Agency 
will be bound by this Judgment for many years to come and will incur costs to bring the system 
into compliance that can only be determined as solutions to the issues are proposed and approved 
by the Cabinet as outlined in the Consent Judgment. The total cost of complying with this 
Consent Judgment has not been determined, but will be significant. As a result, future rate 
increases may be necessary to achieve compliance. The JSA strives to utilize sound business 
principals while meeting the needs of the community and maintaining environmental compliance 
with Federal, State and local regulations. 

The JSA continues to pursue alternative means of funding in the form of grants and low-interest 
loans to aid in the funding of JSA's capital expenditures. The JSA has been successful in 
securing $10.2 million in grants from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) and the 
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development since FY 2005. JSA was 
also awarded a $100 thousand grant from Delta Regional Authority and expended $100 thousand 
of those funds during FY 2013. These funds have been expended on projects relating to 
expansion of the collection system, maximization of flow at Paducah's wastewater treatment 
plant, the separation of flow from JSA's combined sewer system, various compliance related 
planning documents, and the Massac Creek Interceptor Project, thus reducing the burden of these 
projects on JSA ratepayers. 

Requests for Additional Information 
This report is intended to provide readers with a general overview of the JSA's finances and to 
show the JSA's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report 
or need additional financial information, contact the JSA at 621 Northview Street, Paducah, KY 
42001 or (270) 575-0056. 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2013 and 2012 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

2013 2012 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 	4,311,660 $ 	3,884,724 
Investments and accrued interest 6,845,778 6,664,947 
Customer accounts receivable 385,096 337,842 
Grants and other receivables 659,439 691,700 
Accrued unbilled revenue 544,000 566,000 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 324,669 315,483 

Total Current Assets 13,070,642 12,460,696 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Utlity Plant and Capital assets, net 62,654,717 57,276,509 
Restricted assets, investments and 

accrued interest 1,731,224 3,481,096 
Bond discount - net 149,605 130,799 
Notes receivable 4,755 8,918 

Total Noncurrent Assets 64,540,301 60,897,322 

TOTAL ASSETS 77,610,943 73,358,018 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Notes and bonds payable 711,288 695,319 
Accounts payable 1,050,266 1,156,137 
Salaries and benefits payable 102,320 74,909 
Other current liabilities 84,127 405,685 

Total Current Liabilities 1,948,001 2,332,050 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Notes and bonds payable 17,818,151 15,669,545 
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 17,818,151 15,669,545 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,766,152 18,001,595 

NET POSITION 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 44,125,276 40,911,646 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 1,731,224 2,075,365 
Capital Projects 1,405,730 

Unrestricted - net assets 11,988,291 10,963,682 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 	57,844,791 $ 	55,356,423 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

For the Years ended June 30,2013 and 2012 

2013 2012 
Operating Revenues 

Charges for service $ 	6,971,035 $ 	6,807,438 

Operating Expenses 
Salaries, wages and benefits 2,179,431 2,107,174 
Chemicals, testing and solid disposal 309,472 293,386 
Utilities 653,216 587,107 
Materials, supplies and repairs 434,821 536,854 
Fleet expense 126,952 138,960 
Liability insurance 104,406 104,197 
Training, safety and dues 42,173 40,403 
Professional fees 152,963 115,017 
Office expense 15,753 13,601 
Public education 750 3,289 
Billing and collections 101,345 94,079 
Bad debts 41,310 44,863 
Board of directors expense 16,800 16,800 
Miscellaneous 10,098 18,450 
Depreciation 2,299,209 2,099,806 

6,488,699 6,213,986 

Operating Income (Loss) 482,336 593,452 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Investment income 34,398 52,590 
Interest expense (163,235) (145,660) 
Amortization (12,120) (11,153) 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets (16,186) (19,216) 
Tap-on and assessment fees 335,696 203,140 
Other, net 34,479 37,566 

Total non-operating revenue (expenses), net 213,032 117,267 

Change in net position before capital contributions 695,368 710,719 

Capital Contributions 
Grant revenue 1,144,980 745,443 
Contributions from developers 648,020 291,840 

1,793,000 1,037,283 

Change in Net Position 2,488,368 1,748,002 

Net Position, Beginning 55,356,423 53,608,421 

NET POSITION, ENDING $ 57,844,791 $ 55,356,423 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement, 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

2013 2012 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Collections from customers $ 	6,904,471 $ 	6,726,111 
Cash paid to suppliers (2,373,103) (2,057,080) 
Cash paid to employees (2,152,020) (2,154,586).  

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,379,348 2,514,445 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Contributed capital 1,144,980 745,443 
Tap-on fees and assessments 335,696 203,141 
Acquisition of capital assets (6,719,558) (7,074,098) 
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 2,862 16,202 
Transfers from restricted funds 36,426 1,097,482 
Proceeds from debt issues 7,183,894 608,637 
Principal payments on long term debt (5,019,318) (731,237) 
Interest payments on long term debt (475,936) (574,645) 
Other, net (30,254) 37,569 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL 
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3,541,208) (5,671,506) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 10,714,972 12,653,773 
Purchases of investments (9,168,582) (8,380,091) 
Investment earnings 42,406 58,368 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,588,796 4,332,050 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 426,936 1,174,989 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,884,724 2,709,735 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 	4,311,660 $ 	3,884,724 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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PADUCAH MeCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

For the Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

2013 2012 
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income $ 	482,336 $ 	593,452 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 2,299,209 2,099,806 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable (14,993) (11,464) 
Accrued unbilled revenue 22,000 (25,000) 
Inventory and prepaid expenses (9,186) (180,737) 
Accounts payable (105,871) 65,443 
Salaries and benefits payable 27,411 (47,412) 
Other current liabilities (321,558) 20,357 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES $ 	2,379,348 $ 	2,514,445 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity 
The Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency, the "Agency", was established pursuant to Chapter 76 of the Kentucky 
Revised Statutes. The Agency provides wastewater services to the residents of the City of Paducah and McCracken 
County, Kentucky. The Agency was established by merging the City of Paducah Wastewater Enterprise Fund with the 
three sewer districts of McCracken County. Substantially all of the assets and liabilities of the separate component 
entities were contributed to create the Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency effective July 1, 1999. 

Accounting Method 

The Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency maintains its books and these financial statements are presented on the 
accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the 
Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position present increases 
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 
in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's ongoing 
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Agency are charges for sewer service. Operating expenses for 
proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

The significant accounting policies, as summarized below, are in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The 
Agency applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (Codification) issued 
on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in 
which case, GASB prevails. 

Cash and Investments 

The Agency adopted formal deposit and investment policies in 1999. These policies apply to all Agency funds not 
contained in public trusts. 

For the purpose of the Statements of Cash Flows, "cash and cash equivalents" includes unrestricted demand and savings 
accounts of the Agency. 

Accounts Receivable and Bad Debts 

Accounts receivable are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms requiring payment within 30 
days from the invoice mailing date. Customer account balances with invoices dated over 30 days old are considered 
delinquent. Payments of accounts receivable are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the customer's 
remittance advice or, if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid invoices. 

No allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided since it is believed the balance in accounts receivable is fully 
collectible. Overdue accounts are monitored and written off as necessary. The effect of using this method is not 
significantly different from results which would be obtained by using the allowance method. 

Accrued Unbilled Revenue 

Accrued unbilled revenue represents the portion of sewer service provided that was unbilled as of the end of the year. 

Inventories  

Materials and supplies are carried in an inventory account at cost and are subsequently capitalized or charged to expense 
when consumed utilizing the first-in, first out (FIFO) method. 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Notes Receivable 

Notes receivable represent balances due from customers in developed areas/subdivisions that have elected to pay their 
sewer service tap-on fee in installments. The Agency charges new customers an initial fee to connect to the system. That 
fee is paid upon connection, or the customer in developed areas/subdivisions may elect to spread the payment over ten 
years. The monthly installments include six percent interest. The Agency obtains a lien against the property until the 
tap-on fee is satisfied. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated. The Agency generally does 
not capitalize assets with costs less than $1,000. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset 
value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized. 

When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective 
accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded. Depreciation is provided by the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the various classes of assets as follows: 

Years 

Utility plant 20-60 
Vehicles 5-7 
General plant and office equipment 3-10 

Capital Contributions 

Capital contributions are derived from developers, when they construct and pay for sewer lines and then donate these 
additions to the Agency, and other governments, in the form of grants or contributions of capital assets. Developer 
contributions are recorded at fair value when the property is transferred to the Agency and are depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Reclassifications 

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform to 
presentation in the current-year financial statements. 

NOTE B - RESTRICTED FUNDS 

Restricted funds consist of certificates of deposit and other securities, which have been set aside for the repayment of 
bonds and notes or for maintenance reserves as required and for ongoing capital projects. These balances are classified as 
restricted assets on the statement of net assets because their use is limited by applicable bond ordinances and loan 
agreements. 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE B - RESTRICTED FUNDS (Continued) 

At June 30, 2013, these restricted funds were comprised of the following investments; 

2013 2012 

Certificates of deposit — various financial institutions $ 	1,201,171 $ 	1,430,288 
U.S. Government money market funds 482,473 
U.S. Government treasury obligations 530,053 1,568,335 

TOTAL $ 	1,731,224 $ 	3,481,096 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency's policy to use restricted resources 
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

NOTE C — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Deposits 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Agency's deposits may not be 
returned or the Agency will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. The 
Agency's investment policy requires all investments be made in accordance with applicable legal requirements with 
consideration of investment safety. Accordingly, the Agency maintains collateral agreements with its financial 
institutions. Deposits are 100% secured with collateral valued at market or par, whichever is lower. The Board of 
Directors has authorized the Executive Director to utilize depository institutions located within McCracken County, 
which have been evaluated by the Board and/or Executive Director and Finance Director. 

During the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency's investments include U.S. government money market funds, 
short-term treasury obligations, demand deposits and certificates of deposit. The carrying amount, including restricted 
cash, was $12,888,662 and $14,030,766, respectively. The bank balance was $12,348,426 and $12,671,462, respectively. 
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency's bank balance was as follows: 

2013 2012 

Balance covered by FDIC insurance $ 	6,885,011 $ 	7,167,868 
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank or bank 

trust department or agent but not in the Agency's name 5,463,415 5,503,594 
Uninsured and uncollateralized 

S12,348426 $ 	12.671.462 

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. Generally, the 
Agency's investing activities are managed under the direction of the Executive Director and Finance Director. Investing 
is performed in accordance with investment policies adopted by the Board of Directors complying with State Statutes. 
The state statutes authorize the Agency to invest in direct obligations of the United States government, obligations 
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government, certificates of deposit or other interest bearing 
accounts issued by any bank or savings and loan institution provided that such investments are insured by the FDIC or 
guaranteed by the pledge of direct United States government obligations, bonds issued by the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky or one of its agencies and instrumentalities, securities issued by any state or local government of the United 
States rated in one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency, certain mutual funds, 
commercial paper rated in the highest category by a nationally recognized rating agency, or bankers' acceptances for 
banks rated in one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency. 
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PADIJCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE D - CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

The Agency had the following projects in process at June 30,: 

2013 2012 

Blandville West Estates Rehabilitation 792 $ 
Bridge Street Sewer Separation 256,443 
Chickadee Lift Station Elimination Project 144 
Cook Street Overflow Tank 144 
Gatewood Lift Station Elimination Project 144 
Handrails at PWWTP 51,395 
Friendship Road Phase H Sewer Extension 
Long Term Control Plan 805,578 804,159 
Massac Creek Interceptor 

Pump Station and Force Main Phase] 8,700,893 
Pump Station and Force Main Phase II 4,136,109 405,872 

Milton Pump Station Control Panel Upgrad 12,118 
Rehab and Manhole Contract CY '11 2,008,019 
Rehab and Manhole Contract CY '12 1,266,779 37,739 
Rehab and Manhole Contract CY '13 20,229 
Rural Development Bond Pre-Closing Costs 12,658 
Fieldmont Pump Station Refurbishments 12,750 
N. Friendship/Hwy 62 Sewer Extension 10,700 
Homewood/Milliken Pump Station Refurbishment 405,253 93,704 
James Marine Sewer Extension 774 
Old Hwy 60 Extension 4,250 4,250 
Storage Building 8,568 
Wallace Park Sewer Separation 560,513 52,104 
Waukeshaw Engine Rebuild 720 
WIN 911 System and Pump Stations/WWTP 1,760 
Woodlawn WWTP Wet Weather Upgrades 39,806 
Video & Cleaning Contract #9 48,528 
Capitalized Interest 144,322 322,387 
McCracken County Board of Education 120 000 

TOTALS S 	7 $  12,890,772 

Construction in progress related invoices of $614,631 and $549,327 were included in accounts payable at June 30, 
2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE E - UTILITY PLANT 

Utility plant consists of the following at June 30: 

Capital assets, not being 

2013 
Balance as of 
June 30, 2012 Increases Decreases 

Balance as of 
June 30, 2013 

depreciated: 
Land $ 	542,149 S 	203,160 $ 	- $ 	745,309 
Construction in progress 12,890.772 7.178,991 12,610.931 7,458,832 

Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated: 13,432,921 7,382,151 12,610,931 8,204,141 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Utility assets (pipes, pumps, 
plants, structures) 65,719,127 12,907,027 38,834 78,587,320 
Vehicles 1,361,584 8,752 46,472 1,323,864 
General plant and office furniture 2,359,669 9,466 12.470 2,356,665 

Totals at historical cost 69.440 380 12,925,245 97,776 82,267,849 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Utility assets 23,294,970 1,956,256 25,948 25,225,278 
General plant and office furniture 1,377,787 176,139 8,391 1,545,535 
Vehicles 924,035 166.814 44,389 1,046,460 

Total accumulated depreciation 25,596,792 2,299,209 78,728 27,817,273 
Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net: 43,843 588 10,626,036 19,048 54,450,576 
Total System capital assets - net: 1 	57,276,509  $ 	18,008,187  $ 	1 	. 	• 9 	*  S 	62,654,717 

Capital assets, not being 

2012 
Balance as of 
June 30,2011 Increases Decreases 

Balance as of 
June 30.2012 

depreciated: 
Land $ 	504,906 $ 	37,243 $ $ 	542,149 
Construction in progress 7,736,949 7,044,760 1,890,937 12,890,772 

Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated: 8.241,855 7 082,003 1,890,937 13,432,921 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Utility assets (pipes, pumps, 
plants, structures) 63,567,214 2,228,542 76,629 65,719,127 
Vehicles 1,301,671 122,838 62,925 1,361,584 
General plant and office furniture 2,527,827 123.625 291,783 2,359,669 

Totals at historical cost 67 396,712 2 475,005 431.337 69 440,380 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Utility assets 21,594,726 1,763,472 63,228 23,294,970 
General plant and office furniture 1,469,475 178,076 269,764 1,377,787 
Vehicles 828,702 158,258 62,925 924,035 

Total accumulated depreciation 23 892 903 2,099,806 395,917 25,596,792 
Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net: 43,503 809 375,199 35.420 43,843,588 
Total System capital assets - net: $ 	51,745,664 $ 	7,457,202 $ 	1,926,357  $ 	57,276,509  
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Notes and bond payable consists of the following: 
2013 2012 

Notes Payable 
Kentucky Infrastructure Agency $ 	9,605,439 $ 	7,240,864 
Rural Water 4,324,000 

Bonds Payable 
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 4,324,000 
2010 Revenue Bonds 4,600,000 4,800 000 

18,529,439 16,364,864 
Less current maturities 711,288 695 319 

$ 	17,818,151 15.669.545  

Debt service requirements on notes payable and bonds payable at June 30, 2013, are as follows: 

Years Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest Service Fee 

R&M 
Reserves Total 

2014 $ 	711,288 $ 	416,071 $ 	9,089 $ 	43,930 $ 1,180,378 
2015 726,822 401,201 8,181 14,830 1,151,034 
2016 743,092 384,308 7,255 1,134,655 
2017 754,605 366,553 6,310 1,127,468 
2018 776,868 347,338 5,346 1,129,552 

2019 - 2023 3,009,789 1,475,636 16,037 4,501,462 
2024 - 2028 2,569,838 1,036,795 4,231 3,640,864 
2029 - 2033 1,599,319 531,458 132 2,100,909 
2034 - 2038 599,500 337,865 - 937,365 
2039 - 2043 703,500 249,920 953,420 

Thereafter 6,334 818 177,691 6,512,509 

$ 18,529,439  $5,724,836  L11111,1, $ 	58,760  $ 24,369,616 

Notes payable are secured by capital assets and restricted funds. At June 30, 2013, the above notes are payable to the 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority and are payable in semi-annual installments, including interest ranging from 1% to 
3.7%. These agreements provide capital project funding utilizing a combination of both long-term borrowing and federal 
stimulus grants funds from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act. 

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Agency issued Series 2010 (Build America Bonds) Taxable Sewer Revenue 
Bonds, in the amount of $4,995,000, to finance the acquisition, construction, development and equipping of 
improvements and renovations to address combined sewer overflows and eliminate sanitary sewer overflows. These 
taxable bonds were created as part of the Recovery Act of 2009 to finance municipal agency's capital expenditures for 
which the US Treasury Department pays a direct subsidy of 35 percent of the interest cost to the issuer. During the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2013, the Agency received an 8.7 percent reduction in the interest subsidy received due to the 
Federal Government Sequestration. There is a possibility of additional reductions in future interest subsidies relative to 
Build America Bonds. 

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Agency formally issued Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, in the amount of 
$4,324,000 with the first principal payment due January 1, 2014. The interest rate on the bond is 2.75% and the bonds 
require annual principal payments and semi-annual interest payments through 2051. Proceeds from the bonds, which 
mature January 1, 2051, were used to repay the Rural Development note. 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE G — CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows: 

Long-term liabilities: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Due Within 
One Year 

Bonds Payable $ 	4,800,000 $ 	4,324,000 $ 	(200,000) $ 	8,924,000 $ 	259,500 
Notes payable 11 564,863 2,859,894 (4,819,318) 9 605,439 451,788 

Total long-term liabilities $ 16,364,l303  $LL83.13.94 LI,M,111)  $ 18,529,439  $ 	D1,288 

NOTE H - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency accepted sewer line extensions valued $648,020 and $291,840 
for extensions put into service during the year by developers in McCracken County, Kentucky. 

NOTE I — DISCLOSURES REGARDING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Non-cash Investinn and Financing 

2013 	 2012 

Non-cash contributions of property received during the 
years ended June 30 as follows: 

Developer contributions 	 $ 	648,020 	$ 	291,840 
Loss on abandonment of construction in progress 	 $ 	56,121 	$ 	- 

NOTE J - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. To handle the risk of loss, the Agency participates in a public 
entity risk pool offered to the members of the Kentucky Municipal Risk Management Association. Participating 
members pool their funds in order to provide self-insurance, and, when necessary, third-party insurance, against various 
public liability exposure. 

The Agency is responsible for paying annual and supplementary contributions which are determined by the Board that 
governs the operation of the pool. The contributions are calculated based on actuarial evaluations, ratings plans, and 
other analyses of the amounts necessary for the payment of claims and losses. 

In exchange, the Agency is provided with payment of all claims and losses incurred, subject to certain terms and 
conditions such as deductibles and coverage limits. Due to the nature of the public entity risk pool established within this 
policy, the Agency can receive a distribution of surplus funds in the event of excess pool assets or be assessed in the 
event of pool shortfalls. 

NOTE K - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

The Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency employees participate in the County Employees Retirement System 
(CERS), a cost-sharing, multi-employer public employee retirement system that provides retirement, disability, and 
death benefits to members of the plan. Benefits and contribution rates are established by state statute. Under the 
provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 61.645, the Board of Trustees ofKentucky Retirement Systems administers the 
CERS. Kentucky Retirement Systems issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for CERS. Requests for a copy of the report should be made in writing and 
submitted to Kentucky Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601. 

CERS participants have a fully vested interest after completion of sixty (60) months of service, twelve (12) months of 
which are current service. At a minimum, terminated employees are refunded their contributions with credited interest at 
3 percent compounded annually through June 30, 1981, 6 percent thereafter through June 30, 1986, and 4 percent 
thereafter. Benefits and contribution rates are established by State statute. 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE K - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 

CERS covered non-hazardous employees are required to contribute an amount equal to 5.00% of their annual covered 
salary and 6.00% for all new members hired after August 31,2009. Forthe years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, 
the System contributed 19.55%, 18.96%, and 16,93%, respectively, of each non-hazardous employee's creditable 
compensation. These actuarially determined rates are set by the Board of Trustees of Kentucky Retirement Systems. 
Total contributions made forthe years ended Juno 30,2013,2012 and 2011 were 5342,943, S344,320 and 5299,464, of 
which $271,263, $270,111 end 5229,672 were made by the employer and 571,680, $74,209 and 569,792 were made by 
employees, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

NOTE L — DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

The Agency participates in the Kentucky Public Employees' Deferred Compensation Plan, a self-directed multi-
employer 401(k) and 457(b) plan, Under the plan, employees may defer up to 25% of eligible compensation, not to 
exceed the statutory limits, currently $16,500. 

The Agency made discretionary contributions to the 401(k) plan on behalfof the employees in an amount equal to 5.36% 
of eligible compensation. Participants are immediately vested in the employer contribution, Employer contributions for 
the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, WON $74,549 and $76,488, respectively. 

NOTE M - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Agency has entered into a Consent Decree with the Kentucky Environmental and Public Protection Cabinet, The 
Agency is required to bring combined and sanitary sewer overflows Into compliance with Federal and State guidelines, 
The Agency is bound by the Decree for many years to come and will incur significant costs to bring the system into 
compliance that can only be determined as solutions to the issues are proposed and approved by the Cabinet us outlined 
in the Consent Decree. The total cost of complying with this Consent Decree has not been determined, but will be 
significant. 

The followIng significant contracts in progress represent future construction contractual obligations on executed 
construction contracts as ofiune 30, 2013. 

Wallace Park Combined Sewer 

Contract 
Total 

Contract 
Cost-to-date 

Future 
Commitment 

Separation Project S 	607,280 S 	359,128 S 	248,152 

Long Term Control Plan 781,024 757,195 23,829 
Massac Creek Interceptor 

Pump Station and Force Main 
Phase 11 4,300,212 3,667,088 633,125 

Homewood/Milliken 
Pump Station Refurbishment 955,106 218,690 736,416 
Old Hwy 60 Sewer Extension 7,500 3,750 3,750 

Sewer System 
Rehabilitation Contract '13 899,682 19,875 879,807 

WIN-911 	System 	at 	Pump 
Stations and WWTP 2,112 1320 792 

S-5,027,046  L.,./52:.5,1321 

The Agency is a party to litigation with a developer concerning public dedication and connection fees. The Agency's 
counsel has indicated the case Is in discovery phase with the outcome presently undeterminable. Management believes 
the Agency will prevail in this case and, accordingly, no liability has been accrued as ofJune 30,2013 applicable to this 
matter. 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE N — BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS 

It is the policy of the current Board of Directors to designate $135,000 annually for high dollar capital equipment 
purchases, emergencies or rate stabilization in the event of a loss of substantial revenue stream. The Board's intent is to 
establish a maximum funding level of $3 million and a minimum level of $750 thousand in this fund. Designations of 
amounts represent tentative management plans and are subject to change. Unrestricted net assets at June 30, 2013 and 
2012, consist of the following: 

2013 2012 

Designations —high dollar capital equipment 
emergencies and rate stabilization $ 	3,000,000 $ 	3,000,000 

Undesignated 8,988,289 7 963 682 
$ 	11,988,282 $ 	10,963,682 

NOTE 0 — INTEREST EXPENSE 

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, interest expense before adjustment for capitalized construction period 
interest was $475,935 and $468,047, respectively. For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, interest expense of 
$312,701 and $322,387, respectively, was capitalized as part of construction in progress. 

NOTE P — RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued two new 
pronouncements that will have a future impact on the Agency. These statements relate to the recognition of Other Post-
Employments Benefits earned by employees whose governmental agency participates in multi-employer, cost-sharing 
pension plan. The new statements are Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, effective for years 
beginning after June 30, 2013, and Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, effective for 
years beginning after June 30, 2014. These GASB statements require the cost-sharing governments to report a net 
pension liability, pension expense and pension-related deferred inflows and outflows of resources based on their 
proportionate share of the collective amounts for all the governments in the plan. These amounts are not being calculated 
for the year ended June 30, 2013, but will likely have a significant impact in the year of implementation. 

NOTE Q — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 20, 2013, the data which the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

ACTUAL TO BUDGET 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Operating Revenues 

Original 
Budget 

Amounts 
Actual 

Amounts 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Charges for service $ 	6,896,000 $ 	6,971,035 $ 	75,035 

Operating Expenses 
Salaries and wages 2,280,945 2,179,431 101,514 
Chemicals, testing and solid disposal 332,000 309,472 22,528 
Utilities 621,880 653,216 (31,336) 
Materials, supplies and repairs 529,500 434,821 94,679 
Fleet expense 150,000 126,952 23,048 
Liability insurance 104,500 104,406 94 
Training, safety and dues 43,575 42,173 1,402 
Professional fees 88,500 152,963 (64,463) 
Office expense 14,500 15,753 (1,253) 
Public education 4,500 750 3,750 
Billing and collections 103,000 101,345 1,655 
Bad debts 58,400 41,310 17,090 
Board of directors expense 16,800 16,800 - 
Miscellaneous 27,000 10,098 16,902 
Depreciation 2,467,000 2,299,209 167,791 

6,842,100 6,488,699 353,401 

Operating Income (Loss) 53,900 482,336 428,436 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Investment income 35,500 34,398 (1,102) 
Interest expense (605,000) (163,235) 441,765 
Amortization (11,100) (12,120) (1,020) 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets (25,000) (16,186) 8,814 
Tap-on and assessment fees 200,000 335,696 135,696 
Other, net 32,500 34,479 1,979 

Total non-operating revenue (expenses), net (373,100) 213,032 586,132 

Change in net position before capital contributions (319,200) 695,368 1,014,568 

Capital Contributions 
Grant revenue 1,144,980 1,144,980 
Contributed capital 648,020 648,020 

1,793,000 1,793,000 

Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 	(319,200) $ 	2,488,368 $ 	2,807,568 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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FapA KEMPER 
0111rsh7. CPA GROUPw. 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Directors 
Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency 
Paducah, Kentucky 

We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gavernment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency 
as of and for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise Paducah McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency's basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated September 20, 2013. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer 
Agency's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's 
internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements 
on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there 
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's financial 
statements wilt not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination 
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, 

333 Broadway, Suite 1001 • Paducah, KY 42001 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose ofthis report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

C /409(44,500 1.1./4" 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
Paducah, Kentucky 
September 20, 2013 
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mu KEMPER 
our.a..-INCPA GROUP. 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Board of Directors 
Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency 
Paducah, Kentucky 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's major federal programs for the 
years then ended June 30, 2013. Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to 
each of its major federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit 
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those 
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Agency, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit, we considered Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's internal control over compliance with 
the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliancefor each 
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's internal 
control over compliance. 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

itloyie,e, C.A14-4,7100 44/a 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
Paducah, Kentucky 
September 20, 2013 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN COUNTY JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

US Environmental Protection Agency 

Passed through Kentucky Infrastructure Authority: 
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State 

Federal 
CFDA 
Number 

Pass 
Through 
Grantor's 
Number 

Federal 
Expenditures 

Revolving Funds 66.458 A09-02 $ 	914,139 

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State 
Revolving Funds 66.458 Al2-08 900,897 

Total US Environmental Protection Agency 1,815,036 

US Department of Agriculture 

Passed through Kentucky Department of Agriculture: 
USDA Rural Utilities Services—ARBA 10.781 KY20100629- 691,913 

1170 

Delta Regional Authority 

Delta Area Economic Development 90.201 100,000 

Total Federal Awards 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A — BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the Paducah 
McCracken Joint Sewer Agency and is presented on the accrual method of accounting. The information in this 
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from 
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

NOTE B — RECONCILIATION TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Total federal award expenditures above $ 	2,606,949 
Less: Federal award expenditures above applicable to loan program (1,467,969) 

1,138,980 
Other grants 6,000 
Total grant revenue per Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

See Independent Auditor's Report 

-27- 

Audited Financial Statements of JSA -- Fiscal Year 2012 
Exhibit "E" 

Page 32 of 34 



PADUCAH McCRACKEN COUNTY JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR 'I HI, YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Section I — Summary of Auditor's Results 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the Paducah 
McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency. 

2. No significant deficiencies were disclosed relating to the audit of the financial statements. No material 
weaknesses are reported. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the Paducah McCracken County 
Joint Sewer Agency were disclosed during the audit. 

4. No instances of significant deficiencies were disclosed during the audit of internal control over major 
federal award programs. No material weaknesses are reported. 

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the Paducah McCracken 
County Joint Sewer Agency expresses an unqualified opinion. 

6. There were no audit findings that required reporting in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-
133 is reported in this schedule. 

7. The programs tested as major program include: 

Name 
	

CFDA 

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State 
Revolving Funds 
	

66.458 
USDA Rural Utilities Service—ARBA 

	
10.781 

8. The threshold used for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000. 

9. The Paducah McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency was determined to be a high-risk auditee. 

Section II — Findings — Financial Statements Audit 

There were no findings in the current year required to be reported. 

Section III — Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Awards Programs 

There were no findings in the current year required to be reported. 
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PADUCAH McCRACKEN COUNTY JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012 

Section II —Findings — Financial Statements Audit 

There were no findings in reported. 

Section III — Findings and Questioned Costs —Major Federal Awards Programs 

None. 
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